



KENTUCKY HOSA BYLAWS

2025 Edition by KY HOSA.

All rights reserved under Kentucky HOSA. No portion of this publication may be reproduced in any form without permission in writing from Kentucky HOSA, except by a local, state or country affiliation with HOSA.

Published by Kentucky HOSA.

Division of Student Transition and Career Readiness

Office of Career & Technical Educations

300 Sower Blvd., 5th Floor SW

Frankfort, KY 40601

Printed in the United States of America

COPIES OF THIS PUBLICATION ARE AVAILABLE BY CONTACTING THE KENTUCKY HOSA OFFICE
AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS OR ON THE HOSA WEBSITE AT WWW.KYHOSA.ORG.

Table of Contents

Subject Page#

PREFACE 3 ARTICLE I - NAME AND SPONSOR 4 ARTICLE II - PURPOSE 4 ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP 4
ARTICLE IV - ORGANIZATION 8 ARTICLE V - BOARD OF DIRECTORS 10
ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS 10 ARTICLE VII - MEETINGS 15 ARTICLE VIII - COMMITTEES 16 ARTICLE IX -
EXECUTIVE COUNCIL 16 ARTICLE X - PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 18 ARTICLE XI - EMBLEM AND
COLORS 18 ARTICLE XII - SUPERVISION 18 ARTICLE XIII - AMENDMENTS 19

PREFACE

This document is one of several publications that a KY Health Science Educator or KY HOSA Advisor should have in their professional library. Other publications which contain organizational information include the HOSA Inc. Policies, HOSA Handbook, HOSA Inc. Bylaws, Ky HOSA Policies, ILC Guide. This Policies and Procedural manual provides KY HOSA leaders with a better understanding of how the organization operates.

The KY HOSA Executive Committee maintains the Bylaws and makes the necessary changes from time to time in the Policies And Procedures Manual. Any suggestions to improve these policies and procedures should be directed towards the Ky HOSA Board at kyhosa@education.ky.gov .

A big thank you to the KY HOSA team for providing the vision of excellence that makes HOSA the number one student organization for tomorrow's healthcare professionals!

Kentucky HOSA Future Health Professionals Bylaws

ARTICLE I NAME AND SPONSOR

SECTION 1.

The name of this organization shall be Kentucky HOSA Future Health Professionals. The acronym KY HOSA may be used to designate the organization, its unit or members thereof. KY HOSA is a constituent association of HOSA - The Organization.

SECTION 2.

The sponsor of the organization shall be the Office of Career and Technical Education, in the Kentucky Department of Education.

ARTICLE II PURPOSE

SECTION 1.

The purpose of - KY HOSA is to develop leadership and technical HOSA skill competencies through a program of motivation, awareness, and recognition, which is an integral part of the Health Science Education instructional program.

ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1.

KY HOSA is a State organization of, by, and for students who are or were enrolled in secondary, and postsecondary/collegiate health science education classes, and/or are interested, planning to pursue, or pursuing a career in the health professions. It shall consist of local chapters chartered by KY HOSA. 1.

Members shall be students who are, have been, or will be enrolled during the membership year in health science education classes, and/or are interested, planning to pursue, or pursuing a career in the health professions, and persons associated with, participating in or supporting Health Sciences in a professional capacity.

2. Individuals shall be eligible for membership through a chartered state association that is under the auspices of the appropriate State Board of Technical Education, Health Occupations Education or Board approved state agency or organization.

SECTION 2.

A. Local HOSA Chapters shall be chartered by KY HOSA, and may be composed of

the following: Middle School, Secondary, Postsecondary, Collegiate, Alumni, Professional, and Honorary.

At such time as a membership category shall reach (5%) of the total membership, a separate division may be formed upon recommendation of the Executive Council.

B. Classes of membership:

1. *The Middle School Division*- shall be composed of middle school students in grades 6 - 8 who are enrolled in an organized health career awareness program or who are interested or planning to pursue a career in the health professions.
2. *The Secondary Division* - shall be composed of secondary students who are enrolled in high school and in a Health Science program or an organized career awareness program or are interested, planning to pursue, or pursuing a career in the health professions.
3. *The Postsecondary/Collegiate Division* - shall be composed of students who are not enrolled in high school, have received a high school diploma and/or are pursuing a GED and are majoring in a healthcare related field or are interested or planning to pursue a career in the health professions.
4. *Alumni Member* - A former Active Member who no longer meets the criteria for active membership may become an alumni member.
5. *Members-at-large* shall be those persons otherwise qualified for membership where active HOSA chapters are not yet established. Members-at-large shall affiliate directly with Kentucky HOSA, or by geographic region as determined by the Kentucky HOSA Executive Council.
6. *Professional Member* - A person participating in professional development of Kentucky HOSA, is eligible to join as a Professional Member of Kentucky HOSA.
7. *Honorary Member* - Honorary members shall be persons who have made significant contributions to the development of KY HOSA and/or have rendered outstanding service to the organization. Honorary membership may be conferred for life by a three-fourths vote of the Executive Council.

SECTION 3.

At such time that these members organize, Bylaws for the division shall be developed. These divisions shall be affiliated with and maintained under the authority of the respective local chapter.

SECTION 4.

Each organized division shall elect voting delegates as provided by the division Bylaws and in accordance with the state and international bylaws.

SECTION 5.

Action taken by a division shall in no way conflict with the state or international bylaws.

SECTION 6.

Divisional meetings shall be held annually, at the same time and place as the State Conference.

SECTION 7.

The Secondary Division shall be composed of secondary students who are or have been enrolled in a Health Science program or an organized health career awareness program or are interested, planning to pursue, or pursuing a career in the health professions.

- A. Secondary members shall pay dues as established by local, state, and bylaws.
- B. Secondary members shall be eligible to hold state office, participate in national and state activities, serve as voting delegates, and represent their chapter in state and international affairs.
- C. Secondary members elected to state office may extend their membership in their local chapter for the term of office.

SECTION 8.

The Postsecondary/Collegiate Division shall be composed of students who are not enrolled in high school, have received a high school diploma and/or are pursuing a GED, and are enrolled in a healthcare related field at the undergraduate level or are interested or planning to pursue a career in the health professions.

- A. Postsecondary/Collegiate members shall pay dues as established by the local, state, and international bylaws.
- B. Postsecondary/Collegiate members are eligible to hold state office, participate in International and state activities, serve as voting delegates, and represent their chapter in International and state activities.
- C. Members elected to state office may extend their membership in their local chapter for the term of office.

SECTION 9.

The Alumni Division shall be composed of persons who have been a member of HOSA. Alumni members are currently exempt from paying fees and do not have the right to vote, make motions, hold office, or compete in competitive events.

SECTION 10.

The Professional Division shall be composed of persons who are associated with or participating in Health Science Education in Professional capacities.

- A. Professional members may include HOSA advisors, health professionals, alumni or other adult

members of the community who wish to assist
and support the HOSA program and its growth and development.

- B. Professional (Non-Alumni) members shall pay affiliation fees to a local chapter but may not vote, make motions, hold office or compete in competitive events.
- C. Those professional members not directly involved with a local chapter will pay dues through the state chapter.
- D. College graduate students may affiliate as professional members.

SECTION 11.

Honorary members shall be persons who have made significant contributions to the development of KY HOSA and/or have rendered outstanding service to the organization. Honorary membership may be conferred for life by a

three-fourths vote of the Executive Council.

- A. Honorary members shall have none of the obligations and all of the privileges of membership except voting, making motions, holding office, and competing in events.
- B. Honorary members' dues will be paid by KY HOSA through the state chapter.

SECTION 12.

Members-at-large shall be those persons otherwise qualified for membership where active HOSA chapters are not yet established.

- A. Members-at-large shall affiliate directly with state associations.
- B. Members-at-large are not eligible to serve as voting delegates to the state and international conference or seek elected office.

SECTION 13.

Annual affiliation fees from local chapters shall be specified in policies and procedures and must be approved by the Executive Council and the delegates assembly at the annual meeting.

- A. Additional affiliation fees may be assessed by local chapters.
- B. Affiliation fees for fall semester students must be received by National HOSA on or before December 31st of the membership year.
- C. Affiliation fees for students who enroll after December 31st must be submitted to National HOSA on or before February 1 of that same year, except advisor oversight with the maximum of 3 members to be postmarked by February 24.

SECTION 14.

The state membership year shall be August 1st through July 31st.

SECTION 15.

Affiliation fees for postsecondary students who enroll after January 1 must be

received by KY HOSA on or before February 1 of that same year. The membership year concludes on July 31st for these students.

SECTION 16.

Students who do not affiliate by the appropriate date shall be ineligible to participate in the state and international competitive events program or seek state or international office.

SECTION 17.

No members, with the exception of Honorary and Alumni members, shall be considered in good standing unless they pay full local, state, and international assessments by the above dates.

**ARTICLE IV
ORGANIZATION**

SECTION 1.

Chapters of the KY HOSA may be organized in:

- A. *Middle School* - Schools offering health career exploration for grades 6-8 and/or have an interest in a career in the health professions.
- B. *Secondary* - Schools offering secondary health science education programs and/or have an interest in a career in the health professions.
- C. *Post-Secondary*- Schools offering adult health professions program, and post-secondary bachelors, or associate degree.

SECTION 2.

A local school chapter may apply for affiliation when the following requirements have been met:

- A. An active local chapter is established, which requires the chapter to Have at least five members and a chapter advisor who have paid affiliation dues.
- B. A local constitution and/or Bylaws have been adopted.
- C. There are provisions for revising a local constitution and/or Bylaws in order that the local constitution and/or Bylaws in no way conflict with the state or international Bylaws.
- D. All members and advisor(s) of the local chapter have paid all membership dues.
- E. Planned activities are in harmony with the purposes of the Organization. F. Process for a new KY HOSA Charter has been completed.

SECTION 3.

Local chapters shall apply for membership through the State Advisor for

affiliation with the state and international organizations. An instruction sheet for affiliation with KY HOSA shall be sent to the designated Chapter Advisor. A. Advisor(s) name and contact information of

- the new local chapter.
- B. A copy of the local chapter Bylaws.
- C. A list of chapter officers
- D. A list of members.
- E. Verification of full state and international assessment remittance.
- F. A charter fee of a minimum of \$20.00.
- G. A copy of the current program of work.
- H. A letter of acceptance will be sent to the chapter upon receipt of the above, provided that the chapter Bylaws are not in conflict with the state or international Bylaws.
- I. A membership charter will be presented to the chapter at the annual State Leadership Conference.

SECTION 4.

Each chartered chapter of the state organization shall be responsible for all operational activities within the local chapter.

SECTION 5.

Each local chapter shall select voting delegates as provided by the local constitution and/or Bylaws and in accordance with state and international Bylaws.

SECTION 6.

A local chapter in the state organization shall be considered to be active and in good standing when the following general conditions are met:

- A. Current annual state and international assessments have been paid by December 31, with the exception of those students enrolling in a program after January 1. Assessments must be submitted or registered to International HOSA on or before February 1 of the same year.
- B. All current reports have been submitted to the State Advisor.
- C. Proposed changes in the local constitution and/or Bylaws are not in conflict with the state and international Bylaws.
- D. All current activities are in harmony with the ideals and purposes of the state and international Bylaws.
- E. Local chapters who become inactive for three (3) consecutive years will lose their charter, if a chapter should wish to reinstate their charter they must resubmit all information and fees required.

ARTICLE V BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1.

Kentucky HOSA looks to explore the feasibility of transitioning to the HOSA State Association Governance Model as recommended by HOSA, Inc. This will involve examining the structure and operational aspects of the HOSA, Inc. governance model to assess how it can be adapted and implemented to further strengthen Kentucky HOSA's leadership and organizational framework.

ARTICLE VI OFFICERS

SECTION 1.

The elected student officers of the KY HOSA shall be President, Vice President, Secretary, Historian, Treasurer, and Parliamentarian. These officers shall perform the duties prescribed by these Bylaws and by the parliamentary authority adopted by this organization.

SECTION 2.

Students must be enrolled in the appropriate program when running for office and during the term of office. Officer candidates must have held a local office and be an active member, remaining active during their term of office.

SECTION 3.

Duties of the Officers: The officers of the KY HOSA shall make themselves available as necessary in promoting the general welfare of the KY HOSA. State officers and their advisors are responsible for planning and conducting Leadership training for local officers at annual Fall Leadership Conference(s).

A. *President*- It shall be the duty of the President in conjunction with the their local and the State Advisor to:

- a. Preside at all state conferences and meetings.
 - b. Preside at the installation of new officers.
 - c. Serves only as a tiebreaker vote
 - d. Committee Membership
 - i. Ex-officio member of all committees
 - ii. Serve as Chairperson of the Script Committee
 - iii. Member of Conference Planning and Exhibitor Committee.
 - iv. Serve on any other committee that the state advisor and/or the Executive Council deems necessary.
 - e. Make all necessary committee appointments after consulting with the State Advisor.
 - f. Assist with leadership training
 - g. Develop with the assistance of the State Executive Council, an annual program of work.
 - h. Attend ILC and serve as a voting delegate.
 - i. Be responsible for providing agendas to the Executive Council two weeks prior to scheduled meetings
 - j. Serve a one year term as immediate past president.
 - k. The President shall serve as the State Leadership Planning Committee Chairperson
 - l. The advisor to the president shall serve as the Educational Workshops Committee Chairperson
 - m. The President must have an individual local advisor to serve as a member of the executive council alongside them.
- B. *Vice President*: It shall be the duty of the Vice President to:
- a. Serve the state organization in any capacity as directed by the President and to accept the

responsibilities of the President as circumstances may demand.

- b. The Vice President is responsible for publications and any other publicity event, including the KY HOSA Newsletter and disseminates this no later than the SLC.
- c. The Vice President shall serve on committees deemed necessary by the President, Executive Council or State Advisor.
- d. The Vice president must have an individual local advisor to serve as a member of the executive council alongside them.

C. *Secretary*: It shall be the duty of the Secretary to

- a. Keep an accurate record of all meetings of the state organization and State Executive Council meetings.
- b. These minutes shall be sent to members of the Executive Council within 10 days of the Executive Council meeting.
- c. The Secretary shall also have previous minutes available at each meeting to be referenced upon.
- d. These minutes shall be distributed to the chapters upon request.
- e. The Secretary shall prepare the minutes and other records as necessary f. Shall file all such records with KY HOSA
- g. Shall handle all correspondence
- h. Serve in any capacity as directed by the President.
- i. The Secretary shall serve as chairperson of the Scholarship committee, and any other committees deemed necessary by the President, Executive Council or State Advisor.
- j. The secretary must have an individual local advisor to serve as a member of the executive council alongside them.

D. *Treasurer*: The Treasurer shall

- a. Submit annual reports on all accounts to the State Executive Council b. Give a report of the state organization's financial status at each Executive Council Meeting
- c. Compile and present a proposed budget for approval to the State

Executive Council

- d. Keep an accounting of membership and compile a membership report for the council.
- e. The Treasurer shall serve as chairperson of the Finance Committee.
- f. The Treasurer shall serve on committees deemed necessary by the President, Executive Council or State Advisor.
- g. The Treasurer position can be deemed unnecessary if a decision is made by the Executive Council to leave this office open.
- h. The Treasurer must have an individual local advisor to serve as a member of the executive council alongside them.

E. *Historian*: It shall be the duty of the Historian to

- a. Keep the records and materials of historical importance to the state organization in a scrapbook form or in a digital form.
- b. The scrapbook or digital form shall be archived and given to the state advisor prior to leaving the state conference.
- c. An annual account of KY HOSA activities should be presented at the annual convention.

- d. The Historian is responsible for submitting articles for various publications including articles to the international organization.
 - e. The Historian shall serve as a representative for Publicity publications, take photographs at all KY HOSA activities and provide visual presentations at such events as KLTJ Leadership/State Leadership Conference.
 - f. The Historian shall also serve on any committees deemed necessary by the President, Executive Council or State Advisor
 - g. The Historian must have an individual local advisor to serve as a member of the executive council alongside them.
- F. Parliamentarian:* A Parliamentarian shall:
- a. Assist in conducting meetings in a business like way and recommend changes to keep the Bylaws and Policies up-to-date.
 - b. The Parliamentarian shall conduct meetings according to Robert's Rules Newly Revised to which they are applicable and where they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws.
 - c. The advisor to the Parliamentarian or an adult skilled in Parliamentary Procedures shall assist the official Parliamentarian during business meetings.
 - d. The newly elected Parliamentarian shall serve as a voting delegate to the International Leadership Conference.
 - e. The Parliamentarian shall serve as chairperson of the Bylaws Committee. The Parliamentarian shall serve on committees deemed necessary by the President, Executive Council or State Advisor.
 - f. The Parliamentarian must have an individual local advisor to serve as a member of the executive council alongside them.
- G. Past President:* The Past President shall:
- a. Act as peer advisor to the President and will be granted voting privileges.
 - b. They will serve as chair of the Alumni committee along with the Alumni members to the council.
 - c. The Past President or their advisor is expected to attend all regularly scheduled Executive Council meetings.
 - d. Together, they shall have a total of one vote.
 - e. The Past President may be assigned other duties by the State Advisor or President.
 - f. If they are unable to fulfill the duties of this office, the advisor to the immediate past president will then assume the responsibilities.
 - g. The Past President must have a local advisor to serve as a member of the executive council alongside them. The Past President's advisor can be responsible for the past-president along with one other officer.

SECTION 4.

Officer candidates shall be required to obtain 70% on the HOSA Information Examination, which will be administered by the KY HOSA State Advisor or designee.

- A. The candidate shall be interviewed at least one day prior to the annual State Leadership Conference and then slated for their candidate offices. B. Those candidates who have met the application requirements and passed the HOSA Information Examination shall be interviewed with their advisor. After completion of the interview, candidates will be placed on the ballot for their slated office.

SECTION 5.

Candidates for each student office shall submit required information to the State Advisor via their local chapter at least four weeks before the annual State Leadership Conference. This information shall include:

- A. A nomination form with a record of leadership roles specified; including local offices held.
- B. A verified statement of academic performance for the current school year.
- C. A statement of support with the signature of the school principal, vocational director, or dean; the signature of the local chapter advisor; the signature of the State Advisor/or designee; and the signature of parent or guardian if the candidate is a secondary member.
- D. If an office has no candidates, the State Advisor shall immediately send notification to all KY HOSA chapters.
- E. Candidates for this/these offices shall then have a specified amount of time set by the Executive Council or State Advisor to submit required information to the State Advisor.
- F. All information must be submitted prior to being considered by the Executive Council/State Advisor for any position.

SECTION 6.

Candidates for state office shall have held office in the local chapter.

- A. Advisor to the President must have been an advisor to a prior state officer.
- B. Candidates for state office shall not be holding or plan to hold other state offices in other Career and Technical Student Organizations during their term.

SECTION 7.

A state officer may serve no more than two terms in the same elected office.

SECTION 8.

No local chapter shall submit more than two candidates for state office, each of which must be in a separate officer category.

SECTION 9.

Student officers shall be elected by ballots at the annual State Leadership Conference to serve in accordance with state Bylaws. Ballots shall be counted by State Staff only. Ballots shall be kept in the Convention Headquarters or by the State Advisor for 24 hours following the election announcements. Tabulation results for each candidate shall be kept on file for one year by the State Advisor. A plurality vote shall elect. In the event a tie vote occurs, there will be a run-off between the two candidates. A term of office shall begin immediately after the annual State Leadership Conference.

SECTION 10.

Any office shall be declared vacant if the officer does not assume their duties by August 31 of the current membership year. The office shall be filled for the unexpired term by a person appointed by the State Executive Council as outlined in current KY HOSA bylaws, (Article V, section 5). If no qualified applicants are found after being posted the advisor to the previous state officer must fulfill those duties or supply the Executive Council with an eligible candidate to be considered for the position.

If the advisor fails to fulfill this obligation, said advisor will be ineligible to submit candidates for a State office for a period of two years. If a state officer resigns after accepting the position the officers' local chapter shall be

responsible for reimbursing KY HOSA for expenses spent on said officer

(example: t-shirts, hotel/registration they did not attend, etc.) That officer's advisor has the

responsibility to fill the position with another qualified

applicant. If no such applicant is available, the Executive Council will make the decision to appoint a replacement, open the office for candidates as per current KY HOSA bylaws, (Article V, section 5), or leave the office vacant.

ARTICLE VII MEETINGS

SECTION 1.

Annual Meetings: The annual State Leadership Conference meeting site, dates, and the time shall be determined by the State Executive Council in consultation with and recommendations from the State Advisor. The annual State Leadership Conference is open to all active members.

SECTION 2.

Representation: Members shall be represented in the state organization through selected delegates of local chapters.

SECTION 3.

Voting Delegates: Each local chapter shall select voting delegates as determined by the number of active members within the local chapter according to the following scale:

A. Two (2) delegates for the first 30 members or less; an additional delegate for each additional 50 members or major fraction thereof (more than one half).

a) 1- 55 members 2 delegates

b) 56-105 members 3 delegates

c) 106-155 members 4 delegates

d) 156 or more members 5 delegates

B. In no case may any local chapter have more than five (5) voting delegates.

C. Each local chapter may select an alternate for each delegate.

D. Members must complete the credentialing process in order to be a recognized voting delegate. Only credentialed delegates may vote.

SECTION 4.

Ten (10) days prior to the annual State Leadership Conference, the State Advisor(s) and/or the Advisor to the Treasurer shall determine the apportion of voting delegates and a report will be available to the Credentialing Committee.

SECTION 5.

Each delegate shall have one vote and shall be present and seated to vote.

SECTION 6.

Quorum: A quorum for any meeting shall be constituted by representative delegates from a majority of the local chapters who are in good standing.

SECTION 7.

Electronic Voting: Issues members wish to submit for electronic voting should be initiated by the state advisor or their designee. Only those issues that are time sensitive (need to be decided before the next regularly scheduled meeting) will be handled by electronic means. The motions will be generated by the sponsoring agency (Bylaws, Article I, Section 2) and sent to the council for review and action.

ARTICLE VIII COMMITTEES

SECTION 1.

Seven (7) standing committees to be appointed annually by the President, in consultation with the State Advisor are:

- A. Program of Work/Recreation
- B. Finance
- C. Competitive Events
- D. Bylaws
- E. KLT/State Leadership Conference Planning
- F. Script Committee
- G. Future Planning/Exhibitor Committee
- H. Educational Workshops

SECTION 2.

Additional conference committees to be appointed by the President and the State Advisor shall be Credentials, Conference Rules, Arbitration, Nomination Committee, Scholarship Committee and such others as may be necessary.

- A. The Nominating Committee shall be composed of four members of the State Executive Council; two of whom may be student members and the third to be an Advisor on the Executive Council.
- B. The State Advisor shall serve as a non voting ex-officio member, and will receive all nominations.

SECTION 3.

The State Executive Council shall approve all committee appointments.

ARTICLE IX
EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

SECTION 1.

The KY HOSA State Executive Council shall consist of members in good standing who are:

- A. The current elected officers of KY HOSA.
- B. The immediate past President of KY HOSA and/or the local advisor of the immediate past President.
Refer to Article V, Section 3G.
- C. The State Advisor is in the Office of Career and Technical Education, KY Department of Education and serves as an ex-officio non voting member of the Executive Council.
- D. Two local HOSA advisors, one representing Secondary and one representing Postsecondary membership, each serving a two year term.

The local advisors shall be selected from the Health Occupations Education programs encompassed by the local chapters and approved by the State Executive Council.

- E. The chapter advisors of the state officers.
- F. One health professional or professional in a health related field may be appointed by the Council for a two year term. Appointments will be made on odd numbered years. Professional members can serve a maximum of (2) consecutive terms. After (2) consecutive terms, this position will be opened for any interested, qualified applicant.
- G. Health Science Consultant, Office of Career and Technical Education, KY Department of Education serves as an ex-officio, non voting member of the Executive Council.
- H. The chairperson of the State Executive Council shall be the President of KY HOSA. The advisor to the Kentucky HOSA President shall serve as advisor to the council.
- I. One alumni of Kentucky HOSA may be appointed by the Executive Council for a two-year term. Appointments will be made on even numbered years. Alumni members can serve a maximum of two consecutive terms. After two consecutive terms, this position will be opened for any interested and qualified applicant. Alumni members shall have all the rights and privileges of a voting member at executive council meetings and will co-chair the Alumni Committee along with the Past President.
- J. Post-Secondary liaison from the Kentucky Community and Technical College System.
- K. Competitive Events Director. This position shall be appointed by the council and will have voting privileges.

SECTION 2.

KY HOSA State Executive Council shall function in the following ways:

- A. The State Executive Council under the direction of the State Advisor shall have general supervision of the affairs of the state organization

between its meetings; make recommendations to the organization;
perform such other duties as are specified in these Bylaws.

B. The Council or its duly designated committees may set up activities for the state organization or its division as it deems advisable and practical. C. The council shall meet at least five (5) times per year. One of which shall coincide with the annual State Leadership Conference of the KY HOSA.

D. Other meetings may be held, either in person, by telephone conference call, or via E-Mail, at the call of the President or by a majority of the Executive Council, with the approval of the State Advisor.

SECTION 3.

A quorum shall be constituted by a majority of the voting members of the State Executive Council.

SECTION 4.

Policy changes will be proposed by the Bylaws Committee working with the Advisors to the State Parliamentarian. All proposed changes must be approved by a majority vote of the Executive Council.

SECTION 5.

The Executive Council shall have the authority to edit grammar and formatting in the Bylaws and Policies without requiring a vote of the Kentucky HOSA delegate assembly.

ARTICLE X PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

SECTION 1.

Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised shall govern the state organization in all cases to which they are applicable in which they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws.

ARTICLE XI EMBLEM AND COLORS

SECTION 1.

The emblem of HOSA is the word "HOSA" horizontally written in the color navy with maroon-colored incomplete circle partially surrounding the letters "H," "O," "S," and a tan-colored triangle contained within the letter "O" followed by the words "Future Health Professionals" written in the color maroon.

SECTION 2.

The official colors of HOSA are navy blue, maroon, and white.

SECTION 3.

The HOSA tagline is: "HOSA - Future Health Professionals."

SECTION 4.

The HOSA brand will reflect international HOSA's brand.

**ARTICLE XII
SUPERVISION**

SECTION 1.

The State Advisor shall be in the Office of Career and Technical Education, KY Department of Education.

The State Advisor shall serve as:

- A. Coordinate the work of the State Association.
- B. Advise the State Executive Council, Delegates, and Committees on matters of policy.
- C. Keep permanent records of state proceedings.
- D. Serve as an ex-officio non voting member of the Executive Council and all committees.
- E. Assist local chapters with the work of the State Association.
- F. Receive application for and award Membership Charters to local chapters.
- G. Perform other such duties as necessary.
- H. The State HOSA Advisor is the day-to-day administrator of the HOSA program. Due to the transient nature of the HOSA operation, it will be necessary for the state advisor to occasionally perform duties of officers or vacant officer positions and other necessary functions to ensure the smooth operation of the HOSA organization. Additionally, the State HOSA advisor may appoint "interim" officers and officials to perform the duties of the vacant position.
- I. KY HOSA will be financially responsible for bonding of all administrative staff handling KY HOSA state funds.

**ARTICLE XIII
AMENDMENTS**

SECTION 1.

The Bylaws of KY HOSA may be amended at the annual State Leadership Conference by a two-thirds vote of the House of Delegates, provided one of the following procedures has been carried out:

- A. Amendments may be submitted through the chapter advisor, in writing to the State Advisor by any chapter within the state. The State Advisor shall review at least forty-five (45) days prior to the annual State Leadership Conference any recommendations made from local chapters.
- B. Amendments may be submitted in writing by the State Executive Council to the State Advisor at least forty-five (45) days prior to the annual State Leadership Conference.
- C. The State Advisor or local chapters may propose amendments.
- D. Amendments to the proposed amendments must be submitted to the State Advisor twenty (20) days prior to the annual State Leadership Conference. Chapters shall receive amendments to proposed

amendments ten (10) days prior to the annual State Leadership Conference.

SECTION 2.

The State Advisor shall send official copies of all proposed amendments to chapters at least 10 days prior to the annual State Leadership Conference in order that chapters may instruct their official voting delegates.

SECTION 3.

Amendments shall be voted upon during the business session of the annual State Leadership Conference.

SECTION 4.

When a local chapter of KY HOSA has been changed to inactive status that chapter shall be responsible for payment of all liabilities. Any remaining assets/funds of the chapter shall become property of KY HOSA and used at the discretion of the Executive Council.

“The Office for Career & Technical Education, KY Department of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, international origin, sex, disability, age, marital status and religion in admission to educational programs, activities, and employment practices in accordance with [Title VI](#) of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, [Title VII](#) of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, [Title IX](#) of the Education Amendments of 1972, [Section 504](#) of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (revised 1992), and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and shall provide upon request by a qualified disabled individual, reasonable accommodations including auxiliary aids and service necessary to afford individuals with a disability an equal opportunity to participate.

Revised 3/17/2017 by JC Diehl and Elizabeth Bullock

Revised 3/21/2019 by Makayla Nelson and Elizabeth Bullock

Revised 1/19/21 by Ella Brien and Elizabeth Bullock
Approved 3/11/21

Revised 2/4/2023 by Jessica Knight and Susan Readnowner
Approved 3/24/2023

Revised 2/10/2024
Approved 3/24/2024 by Amanda Green and Susan Readnowner

Revised 2/16/2025
Approved 3/22/2025 by Jennifer Wilson, Aaliyah Wesley, and Susan Readnowner Revised 3/25/2026